§103.58

shipped, less any amount forfeited
under §103.58.

(e) For any willful violation of §103.63
committed after January 26, 1987, the
Secretary may assess upon any person
a civil penalty not to exceed the
amount of coins and currency involved
in the transaction with respect to
which such penalty is imposed. The
amount of any civil penalty assessed
under this paragraph shall be reduced
by the amount of any forfeiture to the
United States in connection with the
transaction for which the penalty was
imposed.

(f) For any willful violation com-
mitted after October 27, 1986, of any re-
porting requirement for financial insti-
tutions under this part (except §103.24,
§103.25 or §103.32), the Secretary may
assess upon any domestic financial in-
stitution, and upon any partner, direc-
tor, officer, or employee thereof who
willfully participates in the violation,
a civil penalty not to exceed the great-
er of the amount (not to exceed
$100,000) involved in the transaction or
$25,000.

(g) For any willful violation com-
mitted after October 27, 1986, of any re-
quirement of §103.24, §103.25, or §103.32,
the Secretary may assess upon any per-
son, a civil penalty:

(1) In the case of a violation of §103.25
involving a transaction, a civil penalty
not to exceed the greater of the
amount (not to exceed $100,000) of the
transaction, or $25,000; and

(2) In the case of a violation of §103.24
or §103.32 involving a failure to report
the existence of an account or any
identifying information required to be
provided with respect to such account,
a civil penalty not to exceed the great-
er of the amount (not to exceed
$100,000) equal to the balance in the ac-
count at the time of the violation, or
$25,000.

(h) For each negligent violation of
any requirement of this part, com-
mitted after October 27, 1986, the Sec-
retary may assess upon any financial
institution a civil penalty not to ex-
ceed $500.

[87 FR 6912, Apr. 5, 1972, as amended at 52 FR
11445, Apr. 8, 1987; 52 FR 12641, Apr. 17, 1987.
Redesignated and amended at 64 FR 45451,
45453, Aug. 20, 1999]
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§103.58 Forfeiture of currency or mon-
etary instruments.

Any currency or other monetary in-
struments which are in the process of
any transportation with respect to
which a report is required under §103.23
are subject to seizure and forfeiture to
the United States if such report has
not been filed as required in §103.25, or
contains material omissions or
misstatements. The Secretary may, in
his sole discretion, remit or mitigate
any such forfeiture in whole or in part
upon such terms and conditions as he
deems reasonable.

§103.59 Criminal penalty.

(a) Any person who willfully violates
any provision of Title I of Pub. L. 91—
508, or of this part authorized thereby
may, upon conviction thereof, be fined
not more than $1,000 or be imprisoned
not more than 1 year, or both. Such
person may in addition, if the violation
is of any provision authorized by Title
I of Pub. L. 91-508 and if the violation
is committed in furtherance of the
commission of any violation of Federal
law punishable by imprisonment for
more than 1 year, be fined not more
than $10,000 or be imprisoned not more
than 5 years, or both.

(b) Any person who willfully violates
any provision of Title II of Pub. L. 91-
508, or of this part authorized thereby,
may, upon conviction thereof, be fined
not more than $250,000 or be imprisoned
not more than 5 years, or both.

(c) Any person who willfully violates
any provision of Title II of Pub. L. 91—
508, or of this part authorized thereby,
where the violation is either

(1) Committed while violating an-
other law of the United States, or

(2) Committed as part of a pattern of
any illegal activity involving more
than $100,000 in any 12-month period,
may, upon conviction thereof, be fined
not more than $500,000 or be imprisoned
not more than 10 years, or both.

(d) Any person who knowingly makes
any false, fictitious or fraudulent
statement or representation in any re-
port required by this part may, upon
conviction thereof, be fined not more
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than $10,000 or be imprisoned not more
than 5 years, or both.

[37 FR 6912, Apr. 5, 1972, as amended at 50 FR
18479, May 1, 1985; 563 FR 4138, Feb. 12, 1988]

§103.60 Enforcement authority with
respect to transportation of cur-
rency or monetary instruments.

(a) If a customs officer has reason-
able cause to believe that there is a
monetary instrument being trans-
ported without the filing of the report
required by §§103.23 and 103.25 of this
chapter, he may stop and search, with-
out a search warrant, a vehicle, vessel,
aircraft, or other conveyance, envelope
or other container, or person entering
or departing from the United States
with respect to which or whom the offi-
cer reasonably believes is transporting
such instrument.

(b) If the Secretary has reason to be-
lieve that currency or monetary in-
struments are in the process of trans-
portation and with respect to which a
report required under §103.23 has not
been filed or contains material omis-
sions or misstatements, he may apply
to any court of competent jurisdiction
for a search warrant. Upon a showing
of probable cause, the court may issue
a warrant authorizing the search of
any or all of the following:

(1) One or more designated persons.

(2) One or more designated or de-
scribed places or premises.

(3) One or more designated or de-
scribed letters, parcels, packages, or
other physical objects.

(4) One or more designated or de-
scribed vehicles. Any application for a
search warrant pursuant to this section
shall be accompanied by allegations of
fact supporting the application.

(c) This section is not in derogation
of the authority of the Secretary under
any other law or regulation.

[37 FR 6912, Apr. 5, 1972, as amended at 50 FR
18479, May 1, 1985]

§103.61 Access to records.

Except as provided in §§103.34(a)(1),
103.35(a)(1), and 103.36(a) and except for
the purpose of assuring compliance
with the recordkeeping and reporting
requirements of this part, this part
does not authorize the Secretary or
any other person to inspect or review
the records required to be maintained

§103.64

by subpart C of this part. Other inspec-
tion, review or access to such records is
governed by other applicable law.

[50 FR 5069, Feb. 6, 1985]

§103.62

(a) If an individual provides original
information which leads to a recovery
of a criminal fine, civil penalty, or for-
feiture, which exceeds $50,000, for a vio-
lation of the provisions of the Act or of
this part, the Secretary may pay a re-
ward to that individual.

(b) The Secretary shall determine the
amount of the reward to be paid under
this section; however, any reward paid
may not be more than 25 percent of the
net amount of the fine, penalty or for-
feiture collected, or $150,000, whichever
is less.

(c) An officer or employee of the
United States, a State, or a local gov-
ernment who provides original infor-
mation described in paragraph (a) in
the performance of official duties is
not eligible for a reward under this sec-
tion.

[50 FR 18479, May 1, 1985]

Rewards for informants.

§103.63 Structured transactions.

No person shall for the purpose of
evading the reporting requirements of
§103.22 with respect to such trans-
action:

(a) Cause or attempt to cause a do-
mestic financial institution to fail to
file a report required under §103.22;

(b) Cause or attempt to cause a do-
mestic financial institution to file a re-
port required under §103.22 that con-
tains a material omission or
misstatement of fact; or

(c) Structure (as that term is defined
in §103.11(n) of this part) or assist in
structuring, or attempt to structure or
assist in structuring, any transaction
with one or more domestic financial in-
stitutions.

[62 FR 11446, Apr. 8, 1987, as amended at 54
FR 3027, Jan. 23, 1989]

§103.64 Special rules for casinos.

(a) Compliance programs. (1) Each ca-
sino shall develop and implement a
written program reasonably designed
to assure and monitor compliance with
the requirements set forth in 31 U.S.C.
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